
815 North Orlando Smith Road 
Oglesby, IL  61348-9692 

Board Meeting 
A G E N D A 

Wednesday, February 19, 2025 
Board Room 

4:30 p.m. 

NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding 
 the agenda, please call the President’s office, 224-0402. 



Tentative Board Committee Meetings 
Audit Finance Committee: January, April, June, and November 
Planning Committee: February and October 
Facilities Committee: May and August 
Closed Session Meeting Minutes Committee: June and December 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities 
for students and our community by providing access to affordable, 

high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 
 

 
 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 
January 
 
 
February 
Authorize Budget Preparation 
Reduction in Force 
Tuition and Fee Review 
Three-year Financial Forecast 
Tenure Recommendations 
ICCTA Award Nominations 
 (Alumnus, Student Trustee, Ethical) 
 
 
March 
Reappointment of Non-tenured Faculty 
President’s Evaluation 
ICCTA Award Nominations 
 (FT/PT Faculty, Student Essay, 
 Business/Industry) 
 
 
April 
Board of Trustees Election (odd years) 
Organization of Board (odd years) 
 
 
May 
Budget Adjustments 
President’s Contract Review 
Vice Presidents’ Contract Renewals 
 
 
June 
Authorization of Continued Payment for 
     Standard Operating Expenses 
College Insurance 
 
 
 
 
 

July 
Tentative Budget 

a. Resolution Approving Tentative Budget 
b. Authorization to Publish Notice of  
    Public Hearing 

RAMP Reports 
Athletic Insurance 
 
 
August 
Budget 
 a.  Public Hearing 
 b.  Resolution to Adopt Budget 
 
 
September 
Protection, Health, and Safety Projects 
Cash Farm Lease 
Approval of College Calendar (even years) 
 
 
October 
Authorize Preparation of Levy 
Audit Report 
IVCC Foundation Update 
 
 
November 
Adopt Tentative Tax Levy 
Student Fall/Employee Demographic Reports 
 
 
December 
Adopt Tax Levy 
Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates and Times 
 
 

  
 MISSION STATEMENT 
 



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Wednesday, February 19, 2025 – 4:30 p.m. – Board Room (C-307) 
 
The meeting can be accessed by the public at link https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/81228555729 
and meeting ID number 812 2855 5729. For dial-in, call 1 (312) 626-6799. 
 

A G E N D A 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Moment of Silence 

4. Roll Call 

5. Approval of Agenda 

6. Public Comment 

7. Tenure Recommendations (Pages 1-23) 

 7.1 Jonathan Hubbell (Pages 1-4) 

 7.2 Sarah Legrenzi (Pages 5-10) 

 7.3 Camden Parks (Pages 11-14) 

 7.4 Shannon Slaight-Brown (Pages 15-19) 

 7.5 Jennifer Timmers (Pages 20-23)  

8. Closed Session – 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, 
or dismissal of specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; 
and 3) closed session minutes. 

9. Consent Agenda Items - Anyone may remove an item from the consent item list by 
requesting the chair to do so. Items removed will be discussed and voted upon immediately 
following passage of the remaining consent items. 

9.1 Approval of Minutes – January 15, 2025 Board Meeting and January 15, 2025  
 Planning Committee Meeting (Pages 24-30) 

9.2 Approval of Bills - $1,997,196.84 

9.2.1 Education Fund - $1,641,901.80 

9.2.2 Operations and Maintenance Fund - $115,339.77 

9.2.3 Operations and Maintenance (Restricted) - $79,821.32  

9.2.4 Auxiliary Fund - $59,951.70 

9.2.5 Restricted Fund - $24,120.28 

9.2.6 Audit Fund - $7,333.00 

9.2.7 Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund – $68,311.74 

9.2.8 Grants, Loans, and Scholarship Fund - $417.23 

9.3 Treasurer’s Report (Pages 31-53) 

https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/81228555729


IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
February 19, 2025 
Page 2 
 

9.3.1 Financial Highlights (Pages 32-33) 

9.3.2 Balance Sheet (Pages 34-35) 

9.3.3 Summary of FY25 Budget by Fund (Pages 36-44) 

9.3.4 Budget to Actual by Budget Officers (Page 45) 

9.3.5 Statement of Cash Flows (Page 46) 

9.3.6 Investment Status Report (Pages 47-51) 

9.3.7 Disbursements - $5,000 or more (Pages 52-53) 

9.4 Personnel – Stipends for Pay Periods Ending January 11, 2025, January 25, 2025, 
 and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments January 2025 (Pages 54-58) 

10. Student Trustee’s Report 

11. President’s Report 

12. Committee Reports 

13. Resolution Designating the Fiscal Year (Pages 59-61) 

14. Tuition Adjustment (Page 62) 

15. Course Fees/Adjustment (Pages 63-68) 

16. Approval – Agency Relationship Certificate Resolution (Pages 69-70) 

17. Approval – Transfer of Funds to Capital Development Board Trust Account (Pages 71- 
74) 

18. Purchase Request – Truck Driver Training Simulation Lab Equipment (Pages 75-79) 

19. Purchase Request –Replacement of Various Technology Components (Pages 80-86) 

20. Approval – Designation of Emeritus Status (Pages 87-96) 

20.1 Mary Sue Myers, Faculty Emerita (Pages 87-88) 

20.2 Dr. Mary Margaret Weeg, Faculty Emerita (Pages 89-90) 

20.3 Gene Montgomery, Adjunct Faculty Emeritus (Pages 91-92) 

20.4 Jeanne Hayden, Staff Emerita (Pages 93-94) 

20.5 Lou Borio, Administrator Emeritus (Pages 95-96) 

21. Approval – Board Procedure 01.15.00 Board Travel, Conference, and Meeting Expenses 
(Pages 97-100) 

22. Faculty Appointment – Keturah Haferkamp, English Instructor (Pages 101-102) 

23. Items for Information (Pages 103-119) 

23.1 Fall 2024 Graduation (Page 103) 

23.2 ICCTA 2025 Ray Hartstein Trustee Achievement Award – Jane Goetz (Page 104) 

23.3 ICCTA 2025 Distinguished Alumnus Award – Walter Zukowski (Page 105) 



IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
February 19, 2025 
Page 3 

23.4 ICCTA 2025 Gigi Campbell Student Trustee Excellence Scholarship – Emma 
Garretson (Page 106) 

23.5 ICCTA 2025 Pacesetter Award – Edgar Lucero Castillo (Page 107) 
23.6 FY2024 Popular Annual Financial Reporting (PAFR) Award (Page 108) 
23.7 HLC Student Success Academy Quality Initiative Completion (Pages 109-111) 
23.8 CAAHEP Initial Accreditation for the Medical Assisting Certificate Program 

(Pages 112-114) 
23.9 FY25 Student Organization Budgets (Pages 115-116) 
23.10 Staff Appointment – Lydia Huey, Student Services Information Specialist (Page 

117) 
23.11 Staff Appointment – Laura Pleiss, Library Technical Services Specialist (Page 

118) 
23.12 Employee Separations Report (Page 119) 

24. Trustee Comment

25. Approve and Retain – Closed Session Minutes

26. Other

27. Adjournment



Action Item 7.1 

Faculty Tenure Recommendation – Dr. Jonathan Hubbell, Criminal Justice 
Instructor 

Dr. Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Ron Groleau, Dean of Natural 
Sciences and Business have completed their evaluations of Dr. Jonathan Hubbell, Criminal 
Justice Instructor. The tenure recommendation is attached. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Dr. Jonathan Hubbell, 
Criminal Justice Instructor, as presented. 

 

 

KPI 5:  District Population Served 

 

1



 
 
TO:   Tracy Morris, President 

FROM:  Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Lirim Neziroski, Interim Dean of Natural Sciences and Business 

DATE:  February 7, 2025 

SUBJECT:  Tenure Recommendation for Dr. Jonathan Hubbell, Criminal Justice 

 

Dr. Jon Hubbell began his tenure track position at IVCC in 2022.  He has a Ph.D. in Higher Education 
Administration from Illinois State University, a Masters degree in Criminal Justice from the University 
of Cincinnati, and a Bachelors degree in Criminal Justice Sciences from Illinois State University.  He 
has teaching experience from Heartland Community College and Illinois State University.  Dr. Hubbell 
is a former probation officer and supervisor for McLean County Probation. 
 
Dr. Neziroski and Dr. Trier are both in agreement that Dr. Hubbell meets the requirements for tenure 
outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System. 
 
Additional information on Dr. Hubbell’s accomplishments can be found in the attached form. 
 

MEMORANDUM 

2



3



4



Action Item 7.2 

Faculty Tenure Recommendation – Sara Legrenzi, Nursing Instructor 

Dr. Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Heather Seghi, Dean of Health 
Professions have completed their evaluations of Sara Legrenzi, Nursing Instructor. The 
tenure recommendation is attached. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Sara Legrenzi, Nursing 
Instructor, as presented. 

 

 

KPI 5:  District Population Served 

 

5



 
 
TO:   Tracy Morris, President 

FROM:  Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Heather Seghi, Dean of Health Professions 

DATE:  February 7, 2025 

SUBJECT:  Tenure Recommendation for Sara Legrenzi, Nursing 

 

Mrs. Legrenzi began her career at IVCC during the Fall of 2022. Mrs. Legrenzi graduated from IVCC’s 
nursing program in May of 2020. She obtained her Bachelors in Nursing in June, 2022, and her Master’s 
in Nursing Education in June, 2023. Prior to her nursing degree, Sara held a Bachelors degree in 
Psychology and Sociology from Aurora University. During her time as a Nursing Instructor at IVCC, 
she has taken on the role of lead instructor for the Mental Health portion of the program, and has created 
wonderful, hands-on, real-world simulations to better prepare our students for life as nurse in today’s 
world. 
 
Dean Seghi and Dr. Trier are both in agreement that Sara Legrenzi meets the requirements for tenure 
outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System. 
 
Additional information on Sara Legrenzi’s accomplishments can be found in the attached form. 
 

MEMORANDUM 

6



7



8



9



10



Action Item 7.3 

Faculty Tenure Recommendation – Dr. Camden Parks, Chemistry Instructor 

Dr. Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Ron Groleau, Dean of Natural 
Sciences and Business have completed their evaluations of Dr. Camden Parks, Chemistry 
Instructor. The tenure recommendation is attached. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Dr. Camden Parks, 
Chemistry Instructor, as presented. 

 

 

KPI 5:  District Population Served 

 

11



 
 
TO:   Tracy Morris, President 

FROM:  Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Lirim Neziroski, Interim Dean of Natural Sciences and Business 

DATE:  February 7, 2025 

SUBJECT:  Tenure Recommendation for Dr. Camden Parks, Chemistry 

 

Dr. Parks began his tenure track position at IVCC in 2022.  He started his teaching journey in graduate 
school as a lab assistant.  He has also served as a visiting professor at Grand Valley Community College.  
After earning his doctorate, he designed and taught a course at the Universidade do Rio de Janeiro. 
 
Dr. Neziroski and Dr. Trier are both in agreement that Dr. Parks meets the requirements for tenure 
outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System. 
 
Additional information on Dr. Parks’ accomplishments can be found in the attached form. 
 

MEMORANDUM 

12



13



14



Action Item 7.4 

Faculty Tenure Recommendation – Shannon Slaight-Brown, Art Instructor 

Dr. Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Dr. Lirim Neziroski, Dean of 
Humanities, Fine Arts and Social Sciences have completed their evaluations of Shannon 
Slaight-Brown, Art Instructor. The tenure recommendation is attached. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Shannon Slaight-Brown, 
Art Instructor, as presented. 

 

 

KPI 5:  District Population Served 

 

15



TO: Tracy Morris, President 

FROM: Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
Lirim Neziroski, Dean of Humanities, Fine Arts, and Social Sciences 

DATE: February 7, 2025 

SUBJECT: Tenure Recommendation for Shannon Slaight Brown, Art 

Shannon Slaight-Brown began her tenure track position at IVCC in August 2022.  She has a Masters of 
Fine Arts (MFA) in Ceramics from Virginia Commonwealth University and a Post Baccalaureate in 
Ceramics from the University of Wisconsin in Madison.  Shannon is also a three-time graduate of 
IVCC, with an Associate in Arts, an Associate in Science, and a Certificate in Dental Assisting.  Prior 
to IVCC, Shannon was a part-time instructor at Illinois Central College in Peoria.  She also taught 
Ceramics as a Graduate Assistant at Virginia Commonwealth. 

Dr. Neziroski and Dr. Trier are both in agreement that Ms. Slaight Brown meets the requirements for 
tenure outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System. 

Additional information on Ms. Slaight Brown’s accomplishments can be found in the attached form. 

MEMORANDUM

16



17



18



19



Action Item 7.5 

Faculty Tenure Recommendation – Dr. Jennifer Timmers, Agriculture Instructor 

Dr. Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Ron Groleau, Dean of Natural 
Sciences and Business have completed their evaluations of Dr. Jennifer Timmers, 
Agriculture Instructor.  The tenure recommendation is attached. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Dr. Jennifer Timmers, 
Agriculture Instructor, as presented. 

 

 

KPI 5:  District Population Served 

 

20



 
 
TO:   Tracy Morris, President 

FROM:  Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Lirim Neziroski, Interim Dean of Natural Sciences and Business 

DATE:  February 7, 2025 

SUBJECT:  Tenure Recommendation for Dr. Jennifer Timmers, Agriculture 

 

Dr. Jennifer Timmers began her tenure track position at IVCC in 2022.  She has a Ph.D. in Agronomy 
from the University of Florida, a Masters degree in Agriculture and Natural Resources from Western 
Kentucky University, and a Bachelors degree in Biology from Berea College.  She is a native of 
Northern Kentucky and her interest in agriculture was piqued when she worked at the Berea College 
farm. 
 
Dr. Neziroski and Dr. Trier are both in agreement that Dr. Timmers meets the requirements for tenure 
outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System. 
 
Additional information on Dr. Timmers’ accomplishments can be found in the attached form. 
 

MEMORANDUM 

21



22



23



______    ______ 
 EJS         AMS   
     

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 

January 15, 2025 
 

The Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513 convened a regular 
session at 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, January 15, 2025 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois Valley 
Community College. 
 
Members Physically Present: Everett J. Solon, Chair 
 Jay K. McCracken, Vice Chair 
 Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 
 Amy L. Boyles 
 Jane E. Goetz 
 Maureen O. Rebholz 
 Emma J. Garretson, Student Trustee 
   
Members Virtually Present: Rebecca Donna 
 
Members Telephonically Present:  
 
Members Absent:  
    
Others Physically Present: Tracy Morris, President 
 Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 
 Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
 Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
 Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 
 Walt Zukowski, Attorney 
 
Others Virtually Present:  
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
A moment of silence was held to remember Marilyn Lange of Peru, who served the College for 16 
years as an adjunct instructor, as well as a tutor and worked in the library; Joan Jepngetich of 
Galesburg, a student athlete at Carl Sandburg College; Francis “Fran” Scoma of LaSalle, who is 
the uncle of Diane Scoma, counselor in Project Success; and former President Jimmy Carter. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the agenda.  
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
RECOGNITION OF EMERITUS/EMERITA STATUS RECIPIENTS 
Dr. Morris was pleased to recognize whose resolutions were approved by Board in December 2024 
for Emeritus Status. Five of the nine individuals awarded Emeritus Status and in attendance were: 

24



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
January 15, 2025 
Page 2 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Stephen Alvin, Faculty Emeritus; Bonnie Campbell, Administrator Emerita; Dr. Rose Marie 
Lynch, Faculty Emerita; Dr. Robert Marshall, Administrator Emeritus; and Dr. Jane Sack, Faculty 
Emerita. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Mr. Solon requested a motion and a roll call vote at 4:50 p.m. to enter into a closed session to 
discuss: 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 
specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; and 3) closed session 
minutes.   
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to enter into a closed session. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
The Board entered closed session at 4:54 p.m. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to return to the regular meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
The regular meeting resumed at 5:17 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the consent agenda, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
The following items were approved in the consent agenda: 
 
Approval of Minutes – December 12, 2024 Closed Session Minutes Committee Meeting and 
December 12, 2024 Board Meeting. 
 
Approval of Bills - $1,181,462.74 
Education Fund - $907,878.88; Operations and Maintenance Fund - $111,915.24; Auxiliary Fund 
- $71,477.89; Restricted Fund - $11,065.22; Audit Fund - $14,667.00; Liability, Protection, and 
Settlement Fund - $64,038.51; Grants, Loans, and Scholarship Fund - $420.00. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
Personnel 
Approved stipends for pay periods ending November 30,2024, December 14, 2024 and December 
28, 2024, and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments for December 2024. 
 

25



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
January 15, 2025 
Page 3 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

STUDENT TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
Ms. Garretson highlighted the Fall 2024 overall Athletics GPA was 3.21. The women’s overall 
GPA was 3.41 and the men’s overall GPA was 3.09. The Student Government Association is 
organizing the annual Soul Food Buffet for Black History Month. Student Activities is 
collaborating with Career Services to host its annual Etiquette Dinner in February. Dental students 
will offer teeth cleanings on Monday, Thursday, and Friday mornings this semester. The Spring 
2025 semester began on January 9 and students and staff were welcomed back with a Cocoa Crawl, 
which provided treats and a cup of hot cocoa.  
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Dr. Morris highlighted the start of the Spring semester including a cocoa crawl to welcome students 
back to campus. The Academic Support Center has started re-branding with the help of Michelle 
Carboni to standardize logos for windows. Dr. Morris added to the Dental Health Center report 
given by Ms. Garretson stating she is proud of the work they do to serve our community and noted 
children dental screenings are also free. The golf team is hosting an open house at Deer Park Golf 
Club on January 25, as a way to meet the team and reunite golf alumni. Proceeds will help finance 
the team’s trip to pre-season warmup competitions in Missouri. The first two peer mentors, who 
completed 60 hours of training, are now available five days a week and accept walk-in 
appointments. 
 
Dr. Morris highlighted the work done by the Student Success team and volunteers on the Cocoa 
Crawl and the payroll team and HR benefits team for the work done over break. Spring Preview 
served 160 new students with 30 students attending drop-in session. The overall satisfactory rating 
for the event was 4.93 out of 5. Ashlee Fitzpatrick was named to the Illinois College Access 
Network Steering Committee for a 2-year term; the Assessment Committee had over 45 faculty 
attend sessions on in-service day; CETLA is leading the way with accessibility using a new 
Panorama platform for faculty; and the Academic Support Center is offering tours to faculty and 
classes again this semester. Work is being done to get the transitional reporting for Financial Value 
Transparency/Gainful Employment in place; Truck Driver Training was awarded a $300,000 
Taking Back the Trades Grant from ICCB; and IVCC was notified that MAP grants were reduced 
for the Spring semester. Updated award letters were sent to impacted students notifying them of 
the changes. 
 
Evan Wixom from First State Bank in Mendota invited IVCC Ag to participate in their annual ag 
bank conference on January 23; Dr. Maureen Dunne, who was a guest speaker at IVCC last 
semester, was the 2024 recipient of the national Golden Apple Impact Award. Dr. Dunne talked 
about IVCC and our students in her acceptance speech. 
 
The Transformative Growth report indicated an increase in students served from 41 to 64 and a 
total of 615 sessions provided in 2023-2024. Additional information was provided on student 
preference in therapy modality; types of engagement and outreach; event examples that were 
offered; and results of a survey completed by 169 individuals.  
 
Monthly updates included Spring 2025 an enrollment increase of 6.35% in headcount and 12.77% 
in credit hours compared to Spring 2024.We are at 112.15% of budgeted hours and 112.83% of 
actual prior 10th day hours. We are at 109.6% of the total annual budgeted credit hours. 

26



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
January 15, 2025 
Page 4 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Dr. Morris updated the Board on two tax challenges discussed last month. The first challenge was 
successful. The second challenge was unsuccessful, and we will not pursue additional action. 
Important upcoming dates were shared with the Board and the upcoming process and timelines for 
the President’s evaluation and Board self-evaluation were discussed. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
None 
 
PURCHASE REQUEST – AUDIO-VISUAL TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES FOR CTC 
CONFERENCE CENTER, KITCHEN, AND YOGA STUDIO 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Garretson to authorize the purchase of 
Audio-Visual Systems upgrades for the CTC Conference Center (CTC124/125), Kitchen 
(CTC122/123) and Yoga Studio (CTC121) from Intech Innovations in the amount of $323,955.37. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
PURCHASE REQUEST – FURNITURE FOR DISTANCE LEARNING CLASSROOM 
CTC-206 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the purchase furniture for 
the Distance Learning Classroom in the CTC building from KI at a cost of $27,120.30. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
APPROVAL – INACTIVATION OF BASIC AND ADVANCED DENTAL OFFICE 
MANAGMENT CERTIFICATES 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the inactivation of the 
Basic Dental Office Management Certificate. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the inactivation of the 
Advanced Dental Office Management Certificate. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
APPROVAL – ECE DIRECTOR QUALIFIED CERTIFICATE 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 

27



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
January 15, 2025 
Page 5 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

APPROVAL – BOARD POLICY 04.06 AUDITS 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
Mr. Solon pointed out the information items on pages 50-56 of the Board book. 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENT 
Mr. McCracken stated was pleased to see the Cocoa Crawl and other welcome back events take 
place at the Ottawa Center as well. A joint Chamber of Commerce workshop is being held on 
February 26 at Senica’s in LaSalle with Jason Kotecki.  
  
Dr. Rebholz noted the physical therapy shortage in the area. ICC has eliminated their program and 
suggested working with OSF to possibly create the program at IVCC. Dr. Trier noted there are 
plans to review the possibility. 
 
CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 
It was moved by Ms. Garretson and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve and retain the closed 
session minutes of the December 12, 2024 Closed Session Minutes Committee Meeting and the 
December 12, 2024 Board Meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 
 
OTHER 
Dr. Morris stated the Board Planning Committee will meet at 6:30 p.m. this evening.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 5:52 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________    _____________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 

28



 
_____     ______     ______ 
 JEG         EJS          AMS  

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

 
Planning Committee Meeting 

January 15, 2025 
 

The Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District 
No. 513 met at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, January 15, 2025 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois 
Valley Community College. 

 
Committee Members Jane E. Goetz, Committee Chair 
Physically Present: Amy L. Boyles 
   
Committee Members   
Virtually Present:   Rebecca Donna 
  
Committee Members Absent:    
 
Board Members Present:   
 
Board Members  
Virtually Present:  
 
Others Physically Present:  Tracy Morris, President 
  Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
  Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 

 Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 
  
Others Virtually Present:   
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Ms. Goetz. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
UPDATE ON BOARD POLICY REVIEW 
Dr. Morris stated 129 polices needed to be reviewed at the start of this process. To date, the 
following still need to be reviewed.  

Division 1: Board of Trustees – 0 
Division 2: Academic Services – 2 
Division 3: Personnel – 23 
Division 4: Business Services – 21 
Division 5: College and Community Resources – 3 
Division 6: General Policies – 13 

 
Dr. Morris introduced the Navex PolicyTech tool to the committee. The benefits of this tool 
include automated approval chains; ability to track versions; single source of truth for policies 
(complete and in-process); automated reminders (4-year review cycle); customizable front page; 

29



Minutes of IVCC Board Planning Committee Meeting 
January 15, 2025 
Page 2 
 

_____     ______     ______ 
 JEG         EJS         AMS 

and the ability to have employees affirm they have read a document. What changes within the 
current process is Planning Committee will receive an email from Navex when it is time to review 
a policy; all three members will have to approve the policy; and Division 4 will also go to the 
Audit Finance Committee at the same time.  
 
UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING 
Dr. Morris stated the official plan was brought the Board several months ago and outlined the steps 
taken to develop the plan, the institutional and strategic goals, and other plans going on that feed 
into the strategic plan. Dr. Morris focused on a drafted document that is the first attempt to show 
progress on institutional and strategic goals. The layout of the document was reviewed, and 
feedback on the format was given and discussed. Modifications will be made to the document to 
make it more user friendly. Suggested adding names with the titles of the responsible party.  
 
Owners helped develop these goal documents as they work on items. In February, SLPC will 
review these documents and give feedback. The next step will be to share updates with the 
Planning Committee and the Board quarterly. Also in February, SLPC will begin talking about 
FY26 goals and objectives. The goals will stay the same, but the ultimate plan is the objectives 
would change each year. Because we are already mid-year, some goals will change, and some will 
stay the same.  
 
Dr. Morris stated President’s Council is reviewing the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and 
their measures. There are currently six KPI’s with a large number of measures. President’s Council 
will recommend to SLPC those that are the key or most important measures. By March, the KPIs 
and the top measures will go to the Board for review. 
 
UPDATE ON SUCCESSION PLANNING 
Dr. Morris reviewed succession planning is and what it involves. For IVCC, the prime component 
completed to date has been the Early Retirement Incentive Program. A total of 23 employees are 
retiring or have retired under the plan. The next phase of our succession plan is implementation of 
the Retirement Incentive Program 2.0; identification of key areas for the development of 
competencies followed by training for interested individuals in those areas; and less about targeting 
a specific individual than it is about offering opportunities for professional growth and 
development so that when positions come open (internally or externally), the individuals are ready. 
While a plan is not developed yet, we have the key pieces in progress. 
 
OTHER 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Ms. Goetz declared the meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m.  
 
______________________________________ 
Jane E. Goetz, Planning Committee Chair 
 
______________________________________ __________________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair    Angela M. Stevenson, Board Secretary 

30



 

 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT NO. 513 

 
 
 

TREASURER'S REPORT  

January 2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kathy Ross 
V.P. for Business Services and Finance/Treasurer 

 
Eric Johnson 

Controller 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



Action Item 13 
 
Resolution Designating the Fiscal Year 
 
The administration requests Board authorization to designate a fiscal year.  In keeping 
with past practice, the recommended fiscal year would be from July 1, 2025 to June 30, 
2026. The following resolution and budget calendar are therefore presented for Board 
consideration.   
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends the Board take the following action:   
 

1. Adopt the resolution designating the fiscal year be from July 1, 2025 to 
June 30, 2026; 

 
2. Approve the budget calendar, as presented.   

 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 

59



RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATE A FISCAL YEAR 

 

 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

______________________________________ moved, seconded by ____________________________, 

that the fiscal year of Illinois Valley Community College, District No. 513, Counties of LaSalle, Bureau, 

Marshall, Lee, Putnam, DeKalb, Grundy, and Livingston, in the State of Illinois, be July 1, 2025 to June 

30, 2026. 

ADOPTED this 19th day of February, 2025.   

 
     ________________________________________________ 
                                                                                              Chair, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 

60



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

BUDGET CALENDAR  FY2026 
 
 
 
February 19, 2025 - Resolution to Designate a Fiscal Year 
 
 
July 15, 2025  - Resolution to Adopt Tentative Budget 
    Notice of Public Hearing 
 
 
July 16, 2025  - Budget Available for Public Inspection 
 
 
July 21, 2025  - Notice of Public Hearing published 
 
 
August 19, 2025 - Public Hearing   —  5:30 p.m. 
    Resolution to Adopt Budget 
 

61



Action Item 14 
 
Tuition Adjustment 
 
The administration recommends increasing tuition from $128.60 to $132.60 per credit 
hour, to be effective with the summer 2025 semester. The universal fee would increase by 
$2.00 for technology to $10.40 and student activities fees would remain at $3.00. The 
combined tuition and universal fee would be $146.00. The increase of $6.00 per credit hour 
is a 4.3 percent increase over the FY2025 combined tuition and universal fee of $140.00.  
This includes Truck Driver Training and Real Estate courses. 
 
In addition, the administration recommends dual credit rate structure based on instruction 
method remain at 75 percent of the approved tuition rate for IVCC instructors and $30.00 
for high school instructor-led courses. Administration recommends the following dual 
credit tuition waiver programs remain intact: 
 
Program Waiver 
Dual Credit Free/Reduced Lunch  Tuition Waiver 
Automotive Tuition Waiver (upon 
graduation) 

Tuition Waiver-6 credit hours 

Agriculture Tuition Waiver (upon 
graduation) 

Tuition Waiver-6 credit hours 

30 DC credits for 30 program 25 percent Tuition Waiver-30 credit hours 
 
IVCC’s peer colleges had an average tuition rate of $155.91 in FY25. In comparing FY25 
tuition and fees at similar sized Illinois community colleges, IVCC was lower than five of 
the six other colleges in our peer group.  
 
The College needs to keep pace with the Consumer Price Index (CPI). In addition, the 
technology fee will increase for a second year in a row to keep pace with the escalating 
costs of technological components. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
1. The administration recommends Board approval to increase tuition and fees by 

$6.00, from $140.00 to $146.00 per credit hour beginning with the summer 2025 
semester. 

 
2. The administration recommends Board approval for the dual credit rate structure 

of 75 percent of the approved tuition rate for IVCC instructors, $30.00 for high 
school instructor-led courses and waiver programs as listed above. 

 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 

62



Action Item 15 

Course Fees/Adjustments: 

Course fees are reviewed annually by Program Coordinators and Deans using the approved 
Course Fee Guidelines. A copy of the current course fee guidelines is attached along with 
a copy of the proposed fee changes for FY26. 

As per the Guidelines, courses taught in a dedicated instructional computer lab will have a 
technical support fee included in the final course fee. Based on expenditures to support 
computers in instructional labs, the FY26 lab component of the course fee has been 
calculated at $5.00 per credit hour, which is unchanged from FY20.   

All significant changes (more than a $10 increase) have a brief rationale listed after the 
proposed fee.    

There are currently 293 active courses with approved course fees. This recommendation is 
to change 182 course fees: 164 increases; 4 decreases; 13 new course fees, and 
reinstatement of 1 course fee after an Early Childhood “ECACE” Grant is no longer 
available to cover course fee. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends changing 182 course fees: 164 increases, 4 decreases, 
13 new course fees, and reinstatement of 1 course fee after an Early Childhood 
“ECACE” Grant is no longer available to cover course fee. 

 

KPI 6: Resource Management 

 

 

 

63



64



65



66



67



68



 

 Action Item 16 

 
Approval – Agency Relationship Certificate Resolution   
 
This agency relationship certificate is required as part of our participation in the United 
States Department of Agriculture Distance Learning and Telemedicine grant. This 
agreement is required to be approved by the Board of Trustees. It certifies that the 
President, Tracy Morris, has the authority to provide authorized signatures and 
certifications related to this grant. It also provides authority to the Vice President for 
Business Services and Finance, Kathy Ross, and the Controller, Eric Johnson, to serve as 
administrators to add users and update applications. 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Agency Relationship Certificate and the included resolution, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 6:  Resource Management 
 
 
 

69



Agency Relationship Certificate 

I, Tracy Morris, do hereby certify that: I am the President of Illinois Valley Community College (hereinafter the 

"Organization"); that the following are true and correct copies of resolutions duly adopted by the Organization 

on February 19, 2025 and through the power vested in my position as President, in accordance with the bylaws 

of the Organization; and that none of the following resolutions have been rescinded or modified:  

 

RESOLUTION 

1. RESOLVED that Tracy Morris, the President of the Organization, have the assigned 
RepresentativeSignature-Certifier security role on behalf of the Organization, who shall be responsible 
for providing signatures, authorizing certifications, entering/updating applications, submitting 
applications for consideration, and assigning access to new users in USDA’s Online Application Intake 
System for Telecommunications Programs. If application(s) are awarded under these Programs, the 
Representative-Signature-Certifier security role on behalf of the Corporation, shall also be responsible 
for authorizing certifications, entering/updating compliance reports, submitting compliance reports, 
and assigning access to new users in USDA’s Online Financial Reporting and Compliance System. 
 

2. RESOLVED that Tracy Morris, Kathy Ross, and Eric Johnson have the assigned Administrator(s) security 
role on behalf of the Corporation, who shall be responsible for assigning access to new users and 
entering/updating application(s) in USDA’s Online Application Intake System for Telecommunications 
Programs. If applications are awarded under these Programs, the Administrator(s) security role on 
behalf of the Corporation, shall also be responsible for assigning access to new users and 
entering/updating compliance reports in USDA’s Online Financial Reporting and Compliance System.  
 

3. RESOLVED that the Representative-Signature-Certifier and Administrator(s) for the Organization shall 
comply fully with all security procedures and policies of the Online Application Intake System for 
Telecommunications Programs and USDA’s Online Financial Reporting and Compliance System.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Organization this 23rd day of 

January, 2025. This resolution will be presented to the Board of Trustees on February 19, 2025 for approval. 

________________________________________________ 

Tracy Morris, President 

 

 

70



Action Item 17 

Approval - Transfer of Funds to Capital Development Board Trust Account 
 
The College’s deferred maintenance project, Parking Lots and Roadways Improvements, 
is on the Capital Development Board (CDB) meeting agenda for May 13, 2025 for approval 
of the Architect/Engineering selection. The selection process will be led by the CDB and 
is scheduled to be posted at their website from January 29 through February 19, 2025.  
 
The total cost of the project is $1,512,900 with the College’s share being $378,225 and the 
state contributing $1,134,675. This project includes the crack-fill and re-seal of parking 
lots 7 and 8, removal and return to green space of lot 3 and access drive resurfacing.   
 
The CDB requires that a contributory trust agreement and funds be in place before the May 
13, 2025 CDB meeting. 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends Board approval to transfer $378,225 to a Capital 
Development Board trust account at Midland States Bank to cover anticipated costs 
for Project No. 810-046-021 to begin the project specifications. 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 

 

71



 

 
1 

TRUST AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Illinois Valley Community College 
whose address 815 N. Orlando Smith Rd. Oglesby IL 61348, hereinafter called the Using 
Educational Agency, and Midland States Bank whose address is 201 E Main St. Streator, IL 
61364, hereinafter called Bank. 
 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY is required by law to pay a 
contribution to that certain project, known as Capital Development Board project number CDB 
project # (810-046-021), in the amount of three hundred seventy-eight thousand two hundred 
twenty-five dollars; and 
 

WHEREAS, the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY may elect to deposit the 
contribution under a Trust Agreement, with an Illinois Bank of the Using Educational Agency’s 
choice, pursuant to 71 Illinois Administrative Code 30.110, as amended October 1, 1984. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties do hereby agree: 
 
1.  That the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY does simultaneously 
with execution hereof deposit with Bank funds totaling three hundred seventy-eight 
thousand two hundred twenty-five dollars ($378,225). 

 
2.  That the funds so deposited with the Bank shall be described as the “contribution” and 
shall be held by the Bank in trust according to the terms of this agreement. 
 
3.  That the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY shall receive any interest thereon. 

 
4.  That earnings on the trust corpus shall be paid by the BANK to the USING 
EDUCATIONAL AGENCY not less frequently than quarterly. 

 
5.  That the Executive Director (in his or her official capacity) or the Administrator of 
Fiscal Management (in his or her official capacity) of the Capital Development Board are 
the only persons authorized to direct the BANK to make payment out of the 
trust, other than payment of earnings to the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY in 
accordance with Section 4 hereof. 
 
6.   The right of the Executive Director or the Administrator of Fiscal Management of the 
Capital Development Board to direct payment is restricted in that any such funds so 
directed shall be made payable only to: “The Order of State Treasurer of Illinois, Capital 
Development Board, Contributory Trust Fund”. 
 

72



 

 
2 

7.   That the BANK shall pay such funds within two (2) working days upon the receipt of 
the written direction of the Executive Director or the Administrator of Fiscal 
Management of the Capital Development Board, and that any agreement between the 
BANK and the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY, shall, in no way, affect the duty of 
the BANK to so pay upon demand. 
 
8.    That the BANK, as Trustee, shall invest in securities of the type utilized to 
collateralize deposits by the Treasurer of the State of Illinois, or time deposits, open 
accounts, certificates of deposit, savings accounts or enter into a re-purchase agreement; 
however, all time deposits, open accounts, certificates of deposit, savings accounts shall 
be covered by a pledge of securities to cover the difference between the FDIC insurance 
and the total unsecured amount ( of the type listed in Paragraph 2, below) on deposit with 
the depositor bank of the Trustee Bank. A “safekeeping receipt” for such deposits shall 
be submitted to the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY covering the securities pledged, 
and a certified statement to the effect that all monies invested have been adequately 
protected, shall be submitted to CDB by the BANK.  Should the re-purchase agreement 
cover securities other than those listed in Paragraph 2 of this Section, such agreements 
shall also be subject to the pledge of securities provision as described in this Section.  
The term “securities of the type utilized to collateralize deposits by the Treasurer of the 
State of Illinois” means: direct obligations of the United States Government; general 
obligations of the State of Illinois; notes, bonds, debentures or participation certificates of 
the Federal Mortgage Association, Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan 
Bank, Federal Land Bank, Illinois Building Authority, Illinois Toll Highway Commission 
of Illinois State Toll Highway Authority; Public Housing Authority Notes; obligations of 
the Export-Import Bank of Washington, D.C.; general obligations municipal bonds 
(including school districts) within the State of Illinois rated “A” or better by Moodys; and 
Farmers Home Administration Insured Notes provided such notes are quoted and are 
non-amortized. 
 
9.     That the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY shall be responsible for obtaining the 
written execution of the Trust Agreement by the BANK. Any costs or service fees of the 
BANK shall be borne by the USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY. 

 
10.     That when the total amount of the contribution has been paid from the account in 
accordance with the directions of the Executive Director or the Administrator of Fiscal 
Management of the Capital Development Board, this Agreement shall be terminated and 
any accumulated interest or earnings thereon shall be paid over to the Using Educational 
Agency.     

  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have hereunder set their hands and seals this 
______________ day of _______________, 20______. 
 

73



 

 
3 

 USING EDUCATIONAL AGENCY 
 
                  Illinois Valley Community College   815-224-0419___________________ 
                             Name of School                     Phone number          
 
              By:  Kathy Ross   Vice President For Business Services and Finance 
                              Printed Name                          Title 
 
                  ____________________________  ATTEST: _____________________ 
                                Signature 
               
          BANK 

 
   ____Midland States Bank_____     __815-673-4268_____________ 

               Name of Bank                      Phone number                   
 
              By: _____________________________   ____________________________ 
                              Printed Name                          Title 
 
                    

ATTEST: _____________________ 
                               Signature 
 
           Acknowledgment of Receipt 
              Funds in the Amount                    $_______________________                                   
                                                    
                                        
                  _______________________________ 
                   Bank Representative/Printed Name                                   
                                                                                       
              By: ______________________________   _______________________                              
      Signature                       Title 
 
 
                 

 
   __________________________ Acting Administrator of Fiscal Management  

                Nicholas Klein        CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD  
 

74



Action Item 18 

Purchase Request – Truck Driver Training Simulation Lab Equipment 

The IVCC Truck Driver Training Program was awarded $300,000 in December 2024 
through the Taking Back the Trades Grant from ICCB. The purpose of this grant was to 
purchase two driving simulators and software from Virage Simulation, a vendor in the 
Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Group for a driving simulation lab that would support 
current and future students in the Truck Driver Training (TDT) program. Simulators will 
provide support for new driver instruction for beginner students as well as advanced 
instruction for students who will need practice in situations that we cannot provide due to 
the season or our location (city driving/snow plow/ice roads on inclines etc.).  

Settings that facilitate students’ application of knowledge, skills, and behaviors for entry 
level truck drivers are needed in this program. The simulators will allow students to learn 
shifting skills and backing skills before entering our training vehicles. This will reduce the 
wear and tear on our vehicles, as well as maximize training time in our vehicles. Further, 
the simulators will allow us to put students in real-life examples of delivery in larger cities 
and highways, as well as weather conditions, regional conditions and other examples that 
they may encounter in the work force that we cannot provide given our central Illinois 
location and the time they are in the class. These learning outcomes and program outcomes 
are consistent with the standard scope of national truck driving schools in preparing 
graduates. Several of these skills were recommended by our Advisory Committee 
Members.  

This purchase will allow TDT to expand recruitment to 16- to 24-year-olds interested in 
learning about TDT by offering experiential seminars in the summer and throughout the 
year. Seminars will provide informational instruction to align with initial permit exam 
required for TDT entry and drive time on simulators. Project partners include: IDOT, DD, 
Grain CO., and the LaSalle Peru Area Career Center. 

Virage Simulation is the original manufacturer, unique designer, programmer, 
manufacturer and sole source provider/distributor of the VS600M CDL truck driving 
simulator and its proprietary associated products, software and training scenarios for drier 
training, assessment and research. The letter from Virage is included.  

This purchase is being purchased through the Sourcewell Cooperative purchasing group. 

Item Cost per unit x 2 units Total 
VS600M CDL Simulator $112,612.50 $225,225.00 
Support & 3 Year Extended Warranty $7,875 $15,750.00 
Snowplow Training Program $14,910.70 $29,821.40 
Defensive Driving Training Program $10,412.50 $20,825.00 
Grand Total $145,810.70 $291,621.40 

75



 
 

Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends Board authorization to proceed with the purchase 
of simulators, training programs and support/extended warranty services for the 
Truck Driver Training program from Virage Simulation, using the Taking Back the 
Trades Grant through the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Group at a cost of 
$291,621.40.   
 
 
 
KPI 6:  Resource Management 
 

76



77



78



79



Action Item 19 
 
Purchase Request – Replacement of Various Technology Components 
 
The IT Department is requesting the Board of Trustees to approve the proposal for the 
purchase of student computer equipment detailed below. This equipment builds upon our 
continued commitment to a 4-year refresh cycle for on-campus computers. 
 

• 48 - Lenovo Student Desktop Systems - $86,700 
• 100 - Lenovo Student Laptops - $99,500 

 
The IT Department has received quotes totaling $186,200 from Paragon-Micro and 
Lenovo, However, with the potential for changes in tariffs we are seeking an expenditure 
approval to include final tariffs imposed on this purchase.   
 
These purchases are not subject to bid according to Illinois statutes as the equipment must 
be compatible and functional with our current systems.  
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the proposal from the IT 
Department for purchase of the above listed equipment at a cost of $186,200 plus any 
imposed tariffs. It will be funded out of the FY2025 IT Budget. 
 
 
 
KPI 6:  Resource Management 
 

80



 
 

 
  
                  MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO: Kathy Ross      
 
FROM: Justin Denton 
 
DATE: February 3, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Technology Purchases 
 
 
 
To maintain Illinois Valley Community College's commitment to a 4-year technology 
refresh, the IT Department proposes to refresh desktops and laptops that exceed 4 years 
of age. The areas that benefit from this round of the refresh are Classrooms CTC208 & 
CTC209, the Library Loaner pool and for general portable testing stations to be utilized by 
the nursing department and various other classes on campus. 
 
I express my gratitude to the College for its ongoing dedication to investing in classroom 
technology. The IT Department is committed to playing its part in creating and maintaining 
a high-performance technology environment on campus. We believe that this refresh will 
improve the computing experience in classrooms that have older technology. 
 
Below is a detailed list of the hardware that we plan to purchase as part of this refresh cycle.  
 

• 48 - Lenovo Student Desktop Systems - $86,700 
• 100 - Lenovo Student Laptops - $99,500 

 
Please let me know if you have questions or concerns. 
 
 
 

81



Customer Name: Illinois Valley 
Community Colleg e

Customer Number: 1216343953

Lenovo (United States) Inc.

Bid Request No. BRPNS007300627     V1 Sales Representative: Daniel Rust 
Created On: 14-Jan-2025  Phone Number: +1 (252) 8767993 

Last Updated: 28-Jan-2025  Email: drust2@lenovo.com 
Lenovo Master Contract No.

Customer Contract No.
MC80206650 
US-Midwestern Higher 
Edu Compact-MHEC-
06302022 

Lenovo Pricing Contract:  
Lenovo Contract Code:

5326059010   
CUSMC221 

Thank you for requesting a quote from Lenovo. Your complete quote information is included below. Please feel free to 
reach me by phone or email if you need further assistance.  

PRODUCT AND SERVICE DETAILS

Part Number Description F/B Qty Unit Price End Date Total

12TES0VU00 Desktop TC M70q Gen 5 i5-
14500T 16G 512G 11H F 100 682.00 17-Jan-2026  68,200.00

12NAGAR1US ThinkVision TIO24 Gen5 non 
touch 23.8-inch Monitor F 100 185.00 17-Apr-2025  18,500.00

          Grand Total USD 86,700.00

CONFIGURATION DETAILS

Part Number SKU (MTM_VK) Component Description Qty

12TES0VU00   Desktop TC M70q Gen 5 i5-14500T 16G 512G 
11H 100

  5WS1L39202 SERVICE WARRANTY 4Y Premier Support Plus 1
  12TE_VK00060537 Country/Region USA 1
  12TE_VK00009603 Preload Type Standard Image (Preload) 1
  12TE_VK00109933 Preload OS Windows 11 Home 64 1
  12TE_SBB0P67795 Preload Language Windows 11 Home 64 English 1
  12TE_SBB1H08389 Platform Tiny 1L RPL Q670 1

  12TE_SBB1K31249 Processor
14th Generation Intel® Core™ i5-14500T 

vPro® Processor (E-cores up to 3.40 GHz P-
cores up to 4.80 GHz)

1

  12TE_SBB1B53775 DIMM Memory 16 GB DDR5-4800MHz (SODIMM) 1

  12TE_SBB0T21413 Storage Selection 512 GB SSD M.2 2280 PCIe Gen4 
Performance TLC Opal 1

  12TE_VK00071477 RAID No RAID 1
  12TE_VK00060564 Optical Drive No Optical Drive 1
  12TE_VK00060540 Graphics Integrated Graphics 1
  12TE_VK00069770 Graphic Dongle No Graphics Dongle 1

  12TE_VK00070962 Second Graphic 
Dongle No Second Graphics Dongle 1

  12TE_VK00016897 Ethernet Integrated Ethernet 1
  12TE_VK00070961 Second Ethernet No Second Ethernet 1
  12TE_SBB0T16761 Internal Speakers Internal Speaker 1
  12TE_VK00077378 Cable Lock No Cable Lock 1
  12TE_VK00079081 External Adapter Cage No External Adapter Cage 1

82



Part Number SKU (MTM_VK) Component Description Qty
  12TE_VK00074572 Vertical Stand No Vertical Stand 1
  12TE_VK00062378 Keyboard USB, Traditional, Black - English (US) 1
  12TE_SBB0L52928 Mouse USB Calliope Mouse (Black) 1
  12TE_VK00110636 Default USB Port 1 x USB-C, 2 x Front USB, 4 x Rear USB 1
  12TE_VK00085012 USB-C Port No USB-C Port 1
  12TE_VK00077340 DP Port No DP Port 1
  12TE_VK00115977 Second DP Port No Second DP Port 1
  12TE_VK00077381 VGA Port No VGA Port 1
  12TE_VK00115979 Second VGA Port No Second VGA Port 1
  12TE_VK00077671 Rear Com Port No Rear Com Port 1
  12TE_VK00077672 Second Rear Com Port No Second Rear Com Port 1
  12TE_VK00060652 Wireless LAN No Wireless LAN 1
  12TE_SBB0T15510 Power Adapter 90W 89% Power Adapter 1
  12TE_VK00071480 VESA Mount No VESA Mount 1

  12TE_VK00077337 Tool-less for Open 
Chassis Tool-less for Open Chassis 1

  12TE_VK00077341 HDMI Port No HDMI Port 1
  12TE_VK00115978 Second HDMI Port No Second HDMI Port 1

  12TE_VK00075178 TUV Low Noise 
Certificate No TUV Low Noise Certificate 1

  12TE_VK00074564 Dust Shield No Dust Shield 1
  12TE_VK00104763 EPEAT Gold Certificate No EPEAT Gold Certificate 1
  12TE_VK00074569 Recovery USB No Recovery USB 1
  12TE_VK00108174 CO2 Neutral Label No CO2 Neutral Label 1
  12TE_SBB1A18688 Publication Publication - English/Polish/Portuguese 1
  12TE_VK00077377 Bulk Package No Bulk Package 1
  12TE_VK00060649 Microsoft Office No Microsoft Office 1
  12TE_NPR0005 Adobe No Adobe 1
  12TE_VK00074635 Adobe Acrobat No Adobe Acrobat 1
  12TE_VK00074571 Security Software No Security Software 1

  12TE_VK00140956 Second Security 
Software No Second Security Software 1

  12TE_VK00154929 Third Security 
Software No Third Security Software 1

  12TE_VK00137719 Cloud Security 
Software No Cloud Security Software 1

  12TE_VK00185248 Endpoint 
Management No Endpoint Management 1

  12TE_VK00083388 Absolute BIOS 
Selection BIOS Absolute Enabled 1

  12TE_VK00086586 Premier Asset Tag Premier Support Asset Tag 1
  12TE_SBB0F52821 Model Type Derive Mexico NOM Mark 1
  12TE_SBB0T17940 Modern Standby Modern Standby Enabled 1
  12TE_VK00031830 KB TYPE USB Traditional KB BK 1
  12TE_0B45323 Platformtype TINY 1
  12TE_SBB0J03380 Thermal Thermal Kit 35W Tiny 1
  12TE_SBB0M48832 Package PKG Tiny w/o ODD-WW 1
  12TE_SBB1C22315 OS DPK W11 Home PLUS DPK WW 1
  12TE_VK00071118 Warranty 3 Year On-site 1

83



Part Number SKU (MTM_VK) Component Description Qty

  12TE_VK00060651 Second Storage 
Selection None 1

  12TE_VK00086589 ITC Custom Image 
Type None 1

  12TE_VK00086595 Microsoft Autopilot NONE 1
  12TE_VK00086594 Hard Drive Encryption NONE 1
  12TE_VK00086588 Custom Asset Tag NONE 1
  12TE_VK00086587 BIOS Customization NONE 1

  12TE_VK00086597 vPro Factory Pre-
provisioning NONE 1

  12TE_VK00086591 Future Services 2 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00086592 Future Services 3 NONE 1

  12TE_VK00086593 Laser_Etch and 
UV_Print NONE 1

  12TE_VK00184211 Future Services 5 None 1
  12TE_VK00184212 Future Services 6 None 1
  12TE_VK00184213 Future Services 7 None 1
  12TE_VK00184214 Future Services 8 None 1
  12TE_VK00184215 Future Services 9 None 1
  12TE_VK00184206 Future Services 10 None 1
  12TE_VK00184207 Future Services 11 None 1
  12TE_VK00184208 Future Services 12 None 1
  12TE_VK00184209 Future Services 13 None 1
  12TE_VK00184210 Future Services 14 None 1
  12TE_VK00070953 ITC Drop in Box None 1
  12TE_VK00070957 Image Management None 1
  12TE_VK00070952 Cloud Recovery None 1
  12TE_VK00183807 Label NONE 1

  12TE_VK00183808 ThinkCentre 
Customization NONE 1

  12TE_VK00183809 I/O Box NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183810 Digital Learning Horus NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183811 IGEL OS license NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183812 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS14 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183813 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS15 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183814 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS16 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183815 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS17 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183816 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS18 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183817 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS19 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183818 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS2 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183819 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS20 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183820 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS3 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183821 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS4 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183822 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS5 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183823 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS6 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183824 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS7 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183825 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS8 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00183826 MEKNES_M_TINYOTHERS9 NONE 1
  12TE_VK00018889 HDD2_Type None 1

84



Part Number SKU (MTM_VK) Component Description Qty

  12TE_VK00016885 China Energy 
Categogy None 1

Did you know that Lenovo can help wrap all of your hardware, software and services into a single cost-effective fixed 
monthly payment by using Lenovo Financial Services? Conserve capital, lower your cost of use and gain top performance 
with ongoing support. Ask us how!

 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Prices quoted are valid through 15-Mar-2025 but are subject to change due to events outside Lenovo's reasonable control 
which may necessitate a price increase, including but not limited to price increases directly or indirectly caused by 
changes in taxes, tariffs, import/export quotas, or other market changes. Unless specifically identified in this quote, 
pricing quoted does not include applicable taxes, fees, tariffs, changes due to import/export quotas, or other charges 
which may be imposed on the items purchased. 
 
 
Unless there is a specific written agreement between purchaser and Lenovo, all purchases are subject to the Lenovo 
Terms and Conditions (the "Lenovo Terms") displayed at the following internet address: 
https://download.lenovo.com/lenovo/content/pdf/tnc/tc2.pdf 
The terms of this price quote shall supersede any conflicting terms contained in a customer purchase order. Any 
conflicting or additional terms contained in such purchase order are not valid and will not be considered a part of any 
agreement between the parties related to this quote, its acceptance, or Lenovo's acceptance of a related order.

Thank you for choosing Lenovo!

85



Paragon Micro
PO Box 775695
Chicago IL 60677-5695

Quote

Date:

2/5/2025

Quote #

Q5196254

Bill To:
Illinois Valley Community College
Accounts Payable
815 North Orlando Smith Road
Oglesby IL 61348

Ship To:
IVCC-Loading Dock-CMPSV
Computer Services
815 North Orlando Smith Road
Oglesby IL 61348

Expires:

3/7/2025

Cost CenterTerms

Net 30

Quote Name

K14 CTO

External Notes

DUNS: 800436714
TIN: 20-0144408
CAGE CODE: 4ZHT8

Sales Rep
Mangan, Marty
847 719 7199
mmangan@paragonmicro.com

Customer Contact
Contact: Templeton, Erin
Account: IV5817
PO#:
Phone:
Email: erin_templeton@ivcc.edu

Qty
100

MPN
CUST-LENOVO
-NB-SKU

Description
K14 Gen 3 I5/8gb/256gb
4yr Premier Support

Notes Unit Price
995.00

Total
99,500.00

Subtotal
Shipping Cost (FedEx Ground® (2-5 Business Days))

Total

99,500.00
0.00

$99,500.00

We value your business and will continue to provide you with excellent service in addition to our comprehensive product line.

SALES TAXES ARE ESTIMATED and may change depending on the rates levied by the destination’s tax jurisdiction at the time of invoicing.
Finalized invoice will be sent by Paragon Micro’s Accounting Department.

PRICING AND INFORMATION DISCLAIMER: All pricing is subject to change without notice. For all prices, products and offers, Paragon Micro, Inc.
reserves the right to make adjustments due to changing market conditions, product discontinuation, manufacturer price changes, errors in
advertisements and other extenuating circumstances. While Paragon Micro, Inc. uses reasonable efforts to include accurate and up-to-date
information on the Site, Paragon Micro, Inc. makes no warranties or representations as to the Site’s accuracy. Paragon Micro, Inc. assumes no liability
or responsibility for any errors or omissions in the content on the Site.

______________________________________________                           ______________________________________________
Accepted By: Printed Name                                                                              Purchase Order #

______________________________________________                           ______________________________________________
Authorized Signature                                                                                         Date

86



 

 Action Item 20.1 

Designation of Faculty Emerita (approval) 
 
Board Policy 01.24 – Designation of Emeritus Status allows the Board of Trustees to award 
this honorary designation as outlined in Institutional Procedure 01.24.01 Faculty and 
Adjunct Faculty Emeritus/Emerita. The criteria for Faculty Emeritus status was developed 
with stakeholder input and includes the following: 

• Fifteen years or more of service as a full-time faculty member (including 
counselors) of L-P-O Junior College or Illinois Valley Community College, 
combined with 25 or more total years in the field of education or their specific area 
of expertise at the point of retirement; and 

• Retires/retired from the College; and 
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has 

upheld the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College 
during their employment; and, 

• Has championed or will continue to champion the role of the College in the 
community. 

Individuals were nominated and all submissions were reviewed by a committee to 
determine eligibility for Emeritus Status. The resolution provided includes specific details 
related to the eligibility of Mary Sue Myers for the designation of Faculty Emerita. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Mary Sue Myers for the designation of Faculty Emerita, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

87



Resolution 
 
WHEREAS, in special recognition of distinguished service to Illinois Valley Community 
College and the IVCC community, the Board of Trustees wishes to recognize Mary Sue Myers, 
by honoring her with the title of Faculty Emerita; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Myers was hired in 1967 as one of the first groups of faculty for the newly 
formed community college to teach health education, a role that she held for 35 years before 
retirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Myers served as the advisor to the cheerleaders and to a service group on 
campus, as well as being the first IVCC softball coach in the 1970’s; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Myers was one of the individuals responsible for starting the Educational 
Fitness Center and developed the first ever wellness course, creating new curriculum that 
didn't exist and finding new ways to engage students in wellness in the early days of the 
movement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Myers was active in the community, most notably as one of the original 
individuals who started the LaSalle Food Pantry; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Myers continues to be active in the campus community, often supporting art, 
theatre, and other cultural events and College celebrations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Myers has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious 
service to the College, community and profession, and has upheld the mission, vision, 
strategic objectives and core values of the College during her employment, and has 
championed the role of the College in the community;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community 
College that it approves the designation of Faculty Emerita for Mary Sue Myers.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board herein extends its deepest appreciation to Mary 
Sue Myers for her dedication and service to Illinois Valley Community College and to the 
students, staff, and faculty members who have been positively impacted by her over 35 years 
of service to the College.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution was presented for approval at the Board of 
Trustees meeting on February 19, 2025 and will be noted in the permanent minutes of this 
Board meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Faculty Emerita status for Mary Sue Myers hereunto will be 
listed on the website and identified in publications related to the history of the College and 
that the use of the title “Faculty Emerita” in community and professional activities may be 
allowed now and hereafter. 
 
Effective this 19th Day of February, 2025   ___________________ 
         Board Chair 

88



Action Item 20.2 

Designation of Faculty Emerita (approval) 

Board Policy 01.24 – Designation of Emeritus Status allows the Board of Trustees to award 
this honorary designation as outlined in Institutional Procedure 01.24.01 Faculty and 
Adjunct Faculty Emeritus/Emerita. The criteria for Faculty Emeritus status was developed 
with stakeholder input and includes the following: 

• Fifteen years or more of service as a full-time faculty member (including
counselors) of L-P-O Junior College or Illinois Valley Community College,
combined with 25 or more total years in the field of education or their specific area
of expertise at the point of retirement; and

• Retires/retired from the College; and
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has

upheld the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College
during their employment; and,

• Has championed or will continue to champion the role of the College in the
community.

Individuals were nominated and all submissions were reviewed by a committee to 
determine eligibility for Emeritus Status. The resolution provided includes specific 
details related to the eligibility of Dr. Mary Margaret Weeg for the designation of 
Faculty Emerita. 

Recommendation: 

Approve Dr. Mary Margaret Weeg for the designation of Faculty Emerita, as 
presented. 

KPI 4:  Support for Employees 

89



Resolution 
 
WHEREAS, in special recognition of distinguished service to Illinois Valley Community College 
and the IVCC community, the Board of Trustees wishes to posthumously recognize Dr. Mary 
Margaret Weeg by honoring her with the title of Faculty Emerita; and  
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Weeg was hired in 1956 to teach English at L-P High School and then served as a 
full-time faculty member for 17 years, with the distinction of being the first female faculty 
member to hold a Ph.D.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Weeg was appointed chair of the Humanities Division in 1964, becoming the first 
woman to head an academic division at the community college, serving in this role until 1980, 
when she resigned that post to return full-time to the classroom until her retirement in 1989 
for a total of 35 years of service to the College; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Weeg has been nominated for the AACC Outstanding Alumni Award, named in 
the Outstanding Educators of America and the Directory of American Scholars, and was selected 
as the 1985 Illinois Valley Business and Professional Women’s organization Woman of the Year 
and as one of the Zonta Club’s named Women Making History; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Weeg was an inspiration, a true champion of the College and a tremendous 
benefactor with a gift that will benefit generations of IVCC students; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Weeg served the community through her work with education society Delta 
Kappa Gamma, Zonta Club of the Illinois Valley, the American Federation of Teachers local 1810, 
the IVCC Foundation Board, Illinois Valley Business and Professional Women, LaSalle County 
Historical Society, and the Illinois Retired Teacher’s Association; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Weeg demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service and 
leadership to the College, community and profession, and upheld the mission, vision, strategic 
objectives and core values of the College during her employment, and championed the role of 
the College in the community throughout her life;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community 
College that it approves the designation of Faculty Emerita for Dr. Mary Margaret Weeg.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board herein extends its deepest appreciation to Dr. Weeg 
for her dedication and service to Illinois Valley Community College and to the students, staff, 
and faculty members who have been positively impacted by her over 35 years of service and her 
extraordinary generosity to the College.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution was presented for approval at the Board of 
Trustees meeting on February 19, 2025 and will be noted in the permanent minutes of this Board 
meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Faculty Emerita status for Dr. Weeg will hereunto will be listed 
on the website and identified in publications related to the history of the College and be referred 
to with the title “Faculty Emerita” now and hereafter. 
 
Effective this 19th Day of January, 2025  ___________________ 
         Board Chair 

90



 

 Action Item 20.3 

Designation of Adjunct Faculty Emeritus (approval) 
 
Board Policy 01.24 – Designation of Emeritus Status allows the Board of Trustees to award 
this honorary designation as outlined in Institutional Procedure 01.24.01 Faculty and 
Adjunct Faculty Emeritus/Emerita. The criteria for Faculty Emeritus status was developed 
with stakeholder input and includes the following: 

• Fifteen years or more of service as an adjunct faculty member (including 
counselors) of L-P-O Junior College or Illinois Valley Community College, 
combined with 25 or more total years in the field of education or their specific area 
of expertise at the point of retirement; and 

• Retires/retired from the College; and 
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has 

upheld the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College 
during their employment; and, 

• Has championed or will continue to champion the role of the College in the 
community. 

Individuals were nominated and all submissions were reviewed by a committee to 
determine eligibility for Emeritus Status. The resolution provided includes specific details 
related to the eligibility of Gene Montgomery for the designation of Adjunct Faculty 
Emeritus. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Gene Montgomery for the designation of Adjunct Faculty Emeritus, as 
presented. 
 
 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

91



Resolution 
 
WHEREAS, in special recognition of distinguished service to Illinois Valley Community 
College and the IVCC community, the Board of Trustees wishes to recognize Gene 
Montgomery by honoring him with the title of Adjunct Faculty Emeritus; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Montgomery was hired in 1987 as an adjunct faculty member for the music 
program teaching courses throughout his 32 years of service to IVCC and established the IVCC 
Wind Ensemble in 1989 to bring together area music educators and IVCC students with a 
unique and special experience, which led to approximately 120 concerts across the district 
with many notable soloists and artists; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Montgomery promoted our program at the state level through the Illinois 
Music Education Conference, where the IVCC Wind Ensemble under his leadership had the 
honor of being selected a record number of 3 times in 1991, 2005, and 2018; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Montgomery has been active in the music community for over 50 years 
including the Princeton Community Band, Lyric Winds Woodwind Ensemble, Illinois Valley 
Symphony Orchestra, Festival 56 pit orchestra, and as a founder of the Illinois Valley 
Saxophone Quartet and the IVCC Junior Honor Band Festival that ran for 8 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Montgomery has received such accolades including Phi Beta Mu International 
Bandmasters Fraternity, IL Chapter- Outstanding Bandmaster Award; Who’s Who in 
Collegiate Faculty; Omni Music Award of Excellence in 2017 and the National Band 
Association “Citation of Excellence” in 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Montgomery has demonstrated professional competence, provided 
meritorious service to the College, community and profession, and has upheld the mission, 
vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College during his employment, and has 
championed the role of the College in the community;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community 
College that it approves the designation of Adjunct Faculty Emeritus for Gene Montgomery.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board herein extends its deepest appreciation to Gene 
Montgomery for his dedication, generosity, and service to Illinois Valley Community College 
and to the students, staff, and faculty members who have been positively impacted his over 
32 years of service to the College and 50 years of service to the community.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution was presented for approval at the Board of 
Trustees meeting on February 19, 2025 and will be noted in the permanent minutes of this 
Board meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Adjunct Faculty Emeritus status for Gene Montgomery 
hereunto will be listed on the website and identified in publications related to the history of 
the College and that the use of the title “Adjunct Faculty Emeritus” in community and 
professional activities may be allowed now and hereafter. 
 
Effective this 19th Day of February, 2025   ___________________ 
         Board Chair 

92



 

 Action Item 20.4 

Designation of Staff Emerita (approval) 
 
Board Policy 01.24 – Designation of Emeritus Status allows the Board of Trustees to award 
this honorary designation as outlined in Institutional Procedure 01.24.02 Staff and 
Administrator Emeritus/Emerita. The criteria for Staff Emeritus status was developed with 
stakeholder input and includes the following: 

• Fifteen years or more of service as a full or part-time staff member of L-P-O Junior 
College or Illinois Valley Community College, combined with 25 or more total 
years in the field of education or their specific area of expertise at the point of 
retirement; and 

• Retires/retired from the College; and 
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has 

upheld the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College 
during their employment; and, 

• Has championed or will continue to champion the role of the College in the 
community. 

 
Individuals were nominated and all submissions were reviewed by a committee to 
determine eligibility for Emeritus Status. The resolution provided includes specific details 
related to the eligibility of Jeanne Hayden for the designation of Staff Emerita. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Jeanne Hayden for the designation of Staff Emerita, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

93



Resolution 
 
WHEREAS, in special recognition of distinguished service to Illinois Valley Community 
College and the IVCC community, the Board of Trustees wishes to recognize Jeanne Hayden 
by honoring her with the title of Staff Emerita; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Hayden was first hired in 1972 and served in multiple roles to support the 
College, ending her career serving 22 years as Executive Assistant to the President for five 
IVCC Presidents and Interim Presidents, for a total of 34 years of service to the College; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Hayden was a dedicated professional who provided the presidents and board 
members with unerring exactitude and reliability in managing records, correspondence, 
travel arrangements, appointments, and in general, greatly simplifying their professional 
lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Hayden not only provided a high level of organization but also was proficient 
in learning and using new technology to improve the student experience; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Hayden served the College with extraordinary dedication as evidenced 
through her selection for the 2009 Support Staff award, the 2005 Central Region Professional 
Board Staff Member Award from the ACCT, and Illinois Community College Trustees 
Association 2012 Statewide Professional Board Staff Member Award; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Hayden has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious 
service and leadership to the College, community and profession, and has upheld the 
mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College during her employment, 
and has championed the role of the College in the community;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community 
College that it approves the designation of Staff Emerita for Jeanne Hayden.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board herein extends its deepest appreciation to Jeanne 
Hayden for her dedication and service to Illinois Valley Community College and to the 
students, staff, and faculty members who have been positively impacted by her over 34 years 
of service to the College.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution was presented for approval at the Board of 
Trustees meeting on February 19, 2025 and will be noted in the permanent minutes of this 
Board meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Staff Emerita status for Jeanne Hayden hereunto will be 
listed on the website and identified in publications related to the history of the College and 
that the use of the title “Staff Emerita” in community and professional activities may be 
allowed now and hereafter. 
 
Effective this 19th Day of February, 2025   ___________________ 
         Board Chair 

94



 

 Action Item 20.5 

Designation of Administrator Emeritus (approval) 
 
Board Policy 01.24 – Designation of Emeritus Status allows the Board of Trustees to award 
this honorary designation as outlined in Institutional Procedure 01.24.02 Staff and 
Administrator Emeritus/Emerita. The criteria for Administrator Emeritus status was 
developed with stakeholder input and includes the following: 

• Fifteen years or more of service as an administrator of L-P-O Junior College or 
Illinois Valley Community College, combined with 25 or more total years in the 
field of education or their specific area of expertise at the point of retirement; and 

• Retires/retired from the College; and 
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has 

upheld the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College 
during their employment; and, 

• Has championed or will continue to champion the role of the College in the 
community. 

 
Individuals were nominated and all submissions were reviewed by a committee to 
determine eligibility for Emeritus Status. The resolution provided includes specific details 
related to the eligibility of Lou Borio for the designation of Administrator Emeritus. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Lou Borio for the designation of Administrator Emeritus, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

95



Resolution 
 
WHEREAS, in special recognition of distinguished service to Illinois Valley Community 
College and the IVCC community, the Board of Trustees wishes to recognize Lou Borio by 
honoring him with the title of Administrator Emeritus; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Borio was hired in 1961 as a faculty member for LPO and was selected in 1967 
as the co-chair of the Science Department and also served as a Dean for the College for a 
combined total of 34 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Borio was a dedicated faculty member and advocate for community college 
students, which is demonstrated by his seven National Science Foundation awards, his 
mentorship of at least five long-term IVCC faculty members, and his service as the first 
president of the AFT Local 1810; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Borio created the Raptor Rehabilitation program in 1988, which included 
obtaining the proper state and federal licensure to bring the great horned owl, Charlie, to our 
campus and assisting the program long after his retirement for IVCC and the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Borio served the College and the local community with extraordinary 
dedication as evidenced in 2005 when he and his wife Fran received the Volunteer of the Year 
award from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources for working over 1,500 hours at the 
Starved Rock State Park Visitor Center.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Borio has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious 
service and leadership to the College, community and profession, and has upheld the 
mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College during his employment, 
and has championed the role of the College in the community;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community 
College that it approves the designation of Administrator Emeritus for Lou Borio.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board herein extends its deepest appreciation to Mr. 
Borio for his dedication and service to Illinois Valley Community College and to the students, 
staff, and faculty members who have been positively impacted by his over 34 years of service 
to the College.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution was presented for approval at the Board of 
Trustees meeting on February 19, 2025 and will be noted in the permanent minutes of this 
Board meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Administrator Emeritus status for Lou Borio hereunto will 
be listed on the website and identified in publications related to the history of the College and 
that the use of the title “Administrator Emeritus” in community and professional activities 
may be allowed now and hereafter. 
 
Effective this 19th Day of February, 2025   ___________________ 
         Board Chair 

96



 

 Action Item 21 

Approval-Board Procedure 
 
Board Policy 01.15 Board Travel, Conference, and Meeting Expense covers Board Travel 
reimbursement. Provided is the updated procedure that accompanies the previously 
approved policy. Procedure 01.15.00 Board Travel, Conference, and Meeting Expense 
includes an update to the rates to bring this into alignment with the newest IRS rates and 
increases the daily meal allowance. In addition, the procedure for 03.04.00 Business 
Travel, Conference, and Meeting Expense will also be updated for employee travel, but 
does not require Board Approval. This final version of the procedure was shared with the 
Planning Committee in February, 2025 and is being brought forward for approval. 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Procedure, as presented. 
 
 
 
KPI 6:  Resource Management 
 
 
 

97



Procedure 01.15.00   page 1 

 

 
Application for Travel 
An application for travel form must be completed and approved in advance for all travel.  Prior 
approval signatures should be on the appropriate lines on the left side of the form.   
 
Travel for members of the Board of Trustees will be signed by the traveler, the Chair or Vice Chair 
of the Board and the Vice President for Business Services and Finance. 
 
After the trip is complete, the same set of approval signatures should be on the appropriate lines 
on the right side of the form. Whenever a travel request is initiated, it must be completed whether 
expenses, as a result of the travel, are incurred or not. 
 
Travel expenses for any member of the Board of Trustees must be approved by a roll-call vote 
during an open meeting of the Board of Trustees. 
 
Travel Expenditures 
All official College travel must be supported by receipts for actual expenditures, and all expenses 
must be itemized for reimbursement on the travel form. Itemizing will include all dollar 
expenditures, participants involved and the function or purpose of the meeting. Cash advances may 
be issued for anticipated costs of at least $100 and lesser expenses will be handled on a 
reimbursement-by-receipt basis, in accordance with established College practices. 
 
Mileage Reimbursement 
Reimbursement for use of personal vehicles on College business shall be at the per mile rate 
approved by the Internal Revenue Service of the United States Government. Proof of vehicle 
insurance (copy of insurance card) must be submitted with the application to travel form prior to 
travel. 
 
Commercial Travel 
Commercial travel shall be reimbursed at actual cost. All receipts for air, bus, rail or other travel 
must be submitted with the official College travel form in order to claim reimbursement. All travel 
will be at coach rates. 
 
Lodging 
Reimbursement for lodging shall cover actual room cost, but not to exceed reasonable and 
customary costs. Receipts for all lodging must be submitted with the travel form in order to claim 
reimbursement. 

Illinois Valley Community College Procedure 
  

Subject: Board Travel, Conference, and  Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
 Meeting Expenses  Last Reviewed: 08/17/2017 
Number: 01.15.00  Last Revised: 12/12/2024 
      

98



Procedure 01.15.00   page 2 

Meals 
Meals will be reimbursed for only those consumed while actually traveling on College business.  
Itemized receipts for all meals consumed while actually traveling must be attached to the travel 
form in order to claim reimbursement. Meal reimbursement will be the actual cost up to a 
maximum of $35 per day including gratuities for non-metropolitan areas (e.g. Springfield, IL) and 
a maximum of $45 per day including gratuities for metropolitan areas (e.g. Chicago). 
No reimbursement will be made for alcoholic beverages. 
 
Tours and Social Activities 
No reimbursement will be made for tours, social activities, or entertainment. 
 

PERMISSIBLE TRAVEL EXPENSES 
 

The maximum reimbursable rates for travel are set forth as follows: 
 

Maximum Reimbursable Rates for Transportation 
Air Travel Lowest reasonable rate (coach) 
Auto IRS Standard Mileage Rate at time of 

reimbursement ($0.7067 per mile as of 
1/1/2024) 

Rental Car Lowest reasonable rate (midsize) 
Rail or Bus Lowest reasonable rate and cost shall not 

exceed Air Travel 
Taxi, Shuttle, Rideshare, or Public 
Transportation 

Actual reasonable rate 

 
Maximum Reimbursable Rates for Meals 

Per Day - nonmetropolitan $42.0035.00 
Per Day – metropolitan (Chicago) $52.0045.00 

 
Maximum Reimbursable Rates for Lodging – 2024 rates per US General Services 

Administration (as of 10/1/2024) 
Chicago, Suburban Cook County, and Lake County $223.00/night  
DuPage $115.00/night 
St. Clair County (St. Louis Area) $150.00/night 
Will County $114.00/night 
All other Illinois Counties $110.00/night 
Outside of Illinois $233.00/night or as 

approved by the Board 
Note: When staying at a hotel designated by a conference, the 
conference rate will be the approved rate, even if it exceeds 
the allowable per diem rate. 

 

 
 
 
 

99



Procedure 01.15.00   page 3 

Official Functions 
The College will support the cost of official functions which are conducted for the primary purpose 
of carrying out the business of the College.  All expenditures for meals and other official functions 
must be approved in advance.  Authorized expenditures are categorized as follows: 
 

1. Official College committees and advisory groups meeting outside of normal work 
hours; 

2. Official external committees, advisory groups and guests providing service and/or 
advice and counsel to the College; 

3. College receptions, honors and award activities; 
4. Faculty and staff development, in-service and training functions; 
5. College-sponsored student functions; and 
6. Official functions of the Board of Trustees. 

 

100



Action Item 22 
 
Faculty Appointment – Keturah Haferkamp, English Instructor 
 
The search committee has selected Keturah Haferkamp as English Instructor to fill the new 
position approved in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget process. 
 
Information on this candidate is attached. 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends the appointment of Keturah Haferkamp as English 
Instructor effective August 14, 2025 at Step D-10, an annualized salary of $66,620.00 
on the 2025/2026 faculty salary schedule. 
 
 
 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 

 
 
  
 

101



RECOMMENDED FOR FACULTY APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2026 / ACADEMIC YEAR 2025-2026 

 

Position To Be Filled: 
English Instructor 
 

Number of  
Applicants:  33 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed:  10 (11invited; 1 
declined) 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Lirim Neziroski, Dean of Humanities, Fine Arts, Social Sciences 
• Kim Radek-Hall, English Instructor 
• Kirk Lockwood, English Instructor 
• Sue Caley-Opsal, Anatomy / Biology Instructor 
• Gabby Sorenson, Assistant Bookstore Manager 

 
 
Applicant Recommended: Keturah Haferkamp 
 
Educational Preparation: 

• Triton College, River Grove, IL – Certificate for Online Teaching, Learning and 
Assessment 

• Andrews University, Berrien Springs, MI – M. A. English Language and Literature 
• The Master’s University, Santa Clarita, CA – B. A. English 

 
Experience: 

• Triton College, River Grove, IL – Associate Professor of English (tenured) 
• Peking University – Beijing, China – Visiting Professor; International Lecturer 
• United States Department of State – Fellow, English Language Programs 
• Handong Global University, Pohang, S. Korea – Visiting Professor 

 
 
This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 

1. Extensive teaching experience at the higher education level along with international 
teaching experiences. 

2. Effective teaching demonstration. 
3. Familiarity with academic assessment. 

 
Recommended Salary:  $66,620 annualized (D-10) 
 

Effective Date:  08/14/2025 
 

 
Mary Beth Herron 

Director of Human Resources 
 

 

102



Information Item 23.1 

Fall 2024 Graduation 

There were 162 graduating students earning a total of 185 degrees and certificates in the following 
areas: 
 
20 Associate in Arts degrees 
 
17 Associate in Science degrees 
 
14  Associate in Applied Science degrees 
 
2 Associate in General Studies degrees 
 
132 Certificates of Completion 
 
By comparison, in Fall 2023, 196 students graduated with a total of 251 degrees and certificates.  
In Fall 2022, 158 students graduated with a total of 190 degrees and certificates. 

103



February 19, 2025 

Illinois Community College Trustees Association 
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200 
Springfield, IL 62701-1711 

Re: 2025 ICCTA Ray Hartstein Trustee Achievement Award. 

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee, 

The Illinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend Jane Goetz 
of Ottawa for the ICCTA Ray Hartstein Trustee Achievement Award.  Jane Goetz joined IVCC’s 
Foundation Board as a director in 2004 and served in this role until her election to the Board 
of Trustees in 2013. During her tenure on the Board, which will end in April 2025 after 12 
years, she served as the board chair for four years from 2017-2021 and served as the ICCTA 
Representative from 2021-2023. Those who know Jane through ICCTA have known a 
dedicated and passionate representative for not only IVCC, but for all community colleges 
and the students we serve. Jane was recognized in 2022 as a recipient of the ICCTA Trustee 
Education Award.  

Jane’s contributions to IVCC over her 21 years of service to both the Foundation and the 
Board of Trustees are amazing. This commitment was the basis for her selection for the IVCC 
Spirit Award in 2021.  Jane’s advocacy for IVCC and the community we serve is tremendous, 
with the long list of organizations she volunteers for and serves provided. Jane not only 
serves, but she always steps up to lead. Jane Goetz is the epitome of dedication to our College, 
to education, and to the community.  

She provided stable leadership to IVCC and as she completes her final months of her service 
to IVCC’s Board of Trustees, it would be an honor to have her recognized for her dedication 
to IVCC, ICCTA, and to our larger communities. The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly 
recommends Jane Goetz for the 2025 Ray Hartstein Trustee Achievement Award. 

Sincerely, 

Everett Solon 

Board Chair, Illinois Valley Community College 

Information Item 23.2 

104



February 19, 2025 

Illinois Community College Trustees Association 

401 E. Capitol, Suite 200 

Springfield, IL 62701-1711 

Re: 2025 ICCTA Distinguished Alumnus Award 

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee, 

The Illinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend Walter 
Zukowski of Peru for the ICCTA Distinguished Alumnus Award. 

Walt attended IVCC and graduated Summa Cum Laude with the designation of Thomas J. 
McCormack Scholar in May 1974. Upon completion of his degree at IVCC, Walt attended the 
University of Illinois Springfield (formerly Sangamon State University) on a full academic 
scholarship based on his success at IVCC before attending the University of Notre Dame for a 
combined MBA and JD program. Walt then returned to our community with a local law firm, 
before establishing his own practice in 1989. Walt first attended an IVCC Board Meeting in 
September 1981 and has attended every month’s meeting since then, serving as the legal 
counsel for IVCC for 44 years and counting. 

Walt’s commitment to the College has been tremendous, especially when taking into 
consideration the other tremendous work he has done across the state and the local 
community. He has served on numerous boards and has been a leader in supporting community 
colleges through the formation of the Association for Community College Attorneys. He and his 
wife Nancy are among our strongest supporters of the IVCC Foundation, including 
sponsorships and membership in our 21st Century Scholar Society, which supports the top 
sophomore students each year.  

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends Walter Zukowski for the 2025 
Distinguished Alumnus Award. 

Sincerely, 

Everett Solon 

Board Chair, Illinois Valley Community College 

Information Item 23.3

105



Information Item 23.4

106



Information Item 23.5

107



Government Finance Officers Association

Award for
Outstanding

Achievement in
Popular Annual

Financial Reporting

Presented to

Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513

For its Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Executive Director/CEO

Information Item 23.6

108



Audience: Peer Reviewers Process: Open Pathway Quality Initiative 
Form Contact: pathways@hlcommission.org 
Published: October 2023 © Higher Learning Commission Page 1 

Open Pathway Quality Initiative Report 
Panel Review and Recommendation Form 

Review Process 

The Quality Initiative panel review process evaluates the institution’s effort in undertaking the Quality 
Initiative Proposal approved by HLC. The Quality Initiative process encourages institutions to take risks, 
innovate, take on a tough challenge, or pursue a yet unproven strategy or hypothesis. Thus, failure of an 
initiative to achieve its goals is acceptable. An institution may learn much from such failure. What is not 
acceptable is failure of the institution to pursue the initiative with genuine effort. Genuineness of effort, 
not success of the initiative, constitutes the focus of the Quality Initiative review and serves as its sole 
point of evaluation. 

Submission Instructions 

Submit the final report as a Word document to HLC at hlcommission.org/upload. Select 
“Pathways/Quality Initiatives” from the list of submission options to ensure the report is sent to the correct 
HLC staff member. The file name for the report should follow this format: QI Report Review <Name of 
Institution>. 

Name of Institution: Illinois Valley Community College 

State: IL 

Institutional ID: 1100 

Reviewers (names, titles, institutions): Robert Haas, Chief Strategy Officer at Marion Technical 
College and Janice Denton, Professor Emerita at University of Cincinnati 

Date: 12/15/24 

I. Quality Initiative Review

 The institution demonstrated its seriousness of the undertaking. 

 The institution demonstrated that the initiative had scope and impact. 

 The institution demonstrated a commitment to and engagement in the initiative. 

Information Item 23.7

109

http://www.hlcommission.org/upload


 

Audience: Peer Reviewers  Process: Open Pathway Quality Initiative 
Form  Contact: pathways@hlcommission.org 
Published: October 2023 © Higher Learning Commission  Page 2 

 The institution demonstrated adequate resource provision. 
 

II. Recommendation 

 The panel confirms genuine effort on the part of the institution. 
 

 The panel cannot confirm genuine effort on the part of the institution. 
 

III. Rationale (required) 

Illinois Valley Community College participated in the HLC Student Success Academy from 2022-
2024. This required a 2-year, institutional commitment of resources, both human and financial, and 
signaled the importance the institution placed upon researching and improving student success. 

During this time, the Team representing the institution conducted 4 environmental scanning 
inventories that were designed to uncover (1) student populations that were not as successful as 
others; (2) the effectiveness of student success initiatives currently offered; (3) institutional policies 
and practices that were hindering student success; and (4) how faculty/staff/administrators 
perceived their role in helping students succeed and how students felt the institution was meeting 
their needs. Based on these data, the Team developed a proposal that identified areas of 
opportunity for the institution to increase student success. The proposal was due to be presented to 
their President Council sometime in Fall 2024. 

Throughout the Academy, the Team posted regular project updates, and their assigned mentor and 
scholar provided feedback. The Team’s recommendations evolved over the course of the Academy 
as they uncovered more data and focused their work to support and complement institutional 
priorities. 

The Team ultimately decided to recommend focusing on: 

• Making institutional infrastructure changes to syllabi, the Learning Management System and 
schedule of course offerings.      

• Leveraging technology to develop a tool or process that assess current and future student 
success support initiatives.    

• Promoting student success as a college-wide initiative by broadening engagement. Things 
to be explored include an improved student onboarding process that is inclusive of all 
college departments and fostering intentional discussions about student success at 
department meetings.  

 
To have maximum impact, it will be important to build an evaluation component into each of the 
projects. For example, if changes are made to syllabi, the LMS shell, schedule and onboarding, 
do the students now express satisfaction with these things? 

During the project, the Academy Team disaggregated student population data and identified 
populations who had lower success rates than other students. The literature suggests this 
strategic, targeted population approach to improving student success is a sound methodology.  

110



 

Audience: Peer Reviewers  Process: Open Pathway Quality Initiative 
Form  Contact: pathways@hlcommission.org 
Published: October 2023 © Higher Learning Commission  Page 3 

If a tool is developed to review the effectiveness of current student success initiatives, it may be 
possible to leverage/expand the initiatives that are working well to address the needs of less 
successful populations. 

Illinois Valley’s Academy Team has done some fine work and, assuming the team’s 
recommendations are approved, the initiative has the potential to deliver student success gains. 

111



9355 - 113th St. N, # 7709 
Seminole, FL  33775-7709 

 Phone: 727-210-2350 
www.caahep.org 

Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs 

January 23, 2025 

Tracy Morris, EdD 
President 
Illinois Valley Community College 
815 North Orlando Smith Road  
Oglesby, IL 61348 

Dear Dr. Morris: 

The Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP) is 
pleased to inform you of its January 16, 2025 decision to award initial accreditation to 
the Medical Assisting Certificate program at Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, 
IL. The next evaluation of the program is scheduled to occur no later than 2029. 

The Medical Assisting Education Review Board (MAERB) conducts comprehensive and 
annual reviews of the program’s compliance with the Standards and submits 
recommendations regarding accreditation status to CAAHEP.  MAERB monitors the 
program’s outcomes through the program’s annual report and supporting documentation 
(Standard IV.B.). Profession-specific CAAHEP Standards and Guidelines can be found on 
the website, www.caahep.org. 

CAAHEP publishes the accreditation award letters and accreditation actions summaries on 
its website.  Award letters are accessible within the individual program listings in the “Find 
an Accredited Program” section of the CAAHEP website.  CAAHEP categorizes programs 
according to the profession-specific Standards and Guidelines used to evaluate the program. 

The following citation(s) requires your institution’s attention and resolution to demonstrate 
the program's compliance with the Standards. Failure to respond satisfactorily to the 
citation(s) below may result in a change in accreditation status. 

III.C. Resources - Curriculum
The curriculum content must ensure that the program goals are achieved.
Instruction must be based on clearly written course syllabi that include course
description, course objectives, methods of evaluation, course activities sequence and
timeline, and competencies required for graduation. Instruction must be delivered
in an appropriate sequence of classroom, laboratory, and clinical activities.

The program must demonstrate that the curriculum offered meets or exceeds the 
MAERB Core Curriculum listed in Appendix B of these Standards. 

Information Item 23.8

112

http://www.caahep.org/


Page 2 
Dr. Morris 

A supervised practicum of at least 160 contact hours in a healthcare setting, 
demonstrating the knowledge, skills, and behaviors of the MAERB Core 
Curriculum in performing clinical and administrative duties, must be completed 
prior to graduation. 

On-site supervision of the student must be provided by an individual who has 
knowledge of the medical assisting profession. 

Rationale 
The program was not able to demonstrate that the students were performing clinical and 
administrative duties at the practicum site, as the electronic method of tracking 
competencies performed on site indicated that some students practiced only clinical 
skills. Because the students fill out that form, rather than the site supervisors, the 
information about the student activities onsite is incomplete. 

Requested Documentation 
Submit the following: 

Documentation of the process used to provide oversight of the practicum experience. 

A roster of the most recently assessed practicum students, along with the names of the 
sites at which they were placed and the type of site (clinic, type of office, etc). 

Completed, practicum evaluations by the practicum supervisor for each student that 
verifies that the students have completed the full range of knowledge, skills, and 
behaviors of the MAERB Core Curriculum including clinical and administrative skills.  

CAAHEP requires that a progress report be sent to MAERB by November 01, 2025 with 
evidence that the citation(s) has been resolved. 

The program must submit the progress report via one of the following:  1) Upload it to the 
MAERB website, using the username and password previously sent to you by the MAERB 
staff and following the instructions, “Submitting Documents on the MAERB Website,” 
under the Resources tab, on the Site Visits and Program Resources page, under the section 
”Instructions” at www.maerb.org or 2) or, if there are only a few files to submit, attach the 
files (documentation and a cover letter) to an email and send to MAERB at 
maerb@maerb.org. 

Under the Resources tab on the Site Visits and Program Resources page, in the section 
“Instructions” there is a document titled “Organization of Documents for Submissions.”  It 
explains how to organize your progress report materials and how to label each 
document.  MAERB requires that you follow these protocols when composing your 
Progress Report.  

113

http://www.maerb.org/
mailto:maerb@maerb.org


Page 3 
Dr. Morris 

The accreditation standards are established by CAAHEP, MAERB, American Association 
of Medical Assistants, American Medical Technologists, and National Healthcareer 
Association. 

The commission recognizes your organization’s commitment to continuous quality 
improvement in health professions education, as demonstrated by your participation in 
CAAHEP programmatic accreditation.  Questions concerning the submission or content of 
the progress report should be directed to the MAERB Executive Office. 

Sincerely, 

Barry S. Eckert, Ph.D., FASAHP 
President 

cc: Heather Seghi, MPH, Dean of Health Professions 
Kaity Ritter, BS, AHI, CMA (AAMA), Program Director 
Rebecca Dail, AAS, CMA (AAMA), Chair, MAERB 
Marianne Van Deursen, EdD, CMA (AAMA), Co-Vice Chair, MAERB 
Sarah R. Marino, PhD, Executive Director, MAERB 

114



Information Item 23.9

115



116



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 

Position To Be Filled: 
Student Services Information Specialist 
Admissions and Records 

Number of  
Applicants: 19 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed: 2; 2 declined 
to interview 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Tom Quigley, Director of Enrollment Services
• Sarah Goetz, Records and International Student Specialist 
• Miguel Hermosillo, Bursar
• Rebecca Zamora, Dean of Workforce Development 
• Kaitlyn Edgcomb, Recruitment Coordinator

Applicant Recommended: Lydia Huey 

Educational Preparation: 
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Associate Degree in Business expected

01/2026
• Streator Township High School, Streator, IL – Diploma

Experience: 
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Assistant Coach Women’s Soccer
• Dairy Queen, Streator, IL – Training Manager
• Jimmy Johns, Streator, IL – Manager

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 
1. Eagerness to learn, positive attitude, and enthusiasm were displayed during the interview

process; these qualities are assets to the College and will well serve our student
population.

2. Customer service and leadership experience.
3. Familiarity with the College as a student and assistant coach.

Recommended Salary:  $17.00/hour Effective Date:  02/18/2025 

Mary Beth Herron 
Director of Human Resources 

Information Item 23.10

117



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 

Position To Be Filled: 
Library Technical Services Specialist 

Number of  
Applicants:  7 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed:  3 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Ellen Evancheck, Director of Learning Resources 
• Sarah Stevenson, Library Services Coordinator
• Diane Scoma, Project Success Counselor
• Kathy Hart, Dean of Institutional Effectiveness
• Brian Pichman, Chief Information Security Officer 

Applicant Recommended: Laura Pleiss 

Educational Preparation: 
• Southern Illinois University, Carbondale, IL – Bachelor of Arts, English Literature
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL & Columbia College, Chicago, IL – attended 
• St. Bede Academy, Peru, IL – Diploma

Experience: 
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Library Technician II, Technical Services
• Normandale Community College, Bloomington, MN – Technology Support Specialist 
• Black & Veatch, Bloomington, MN – Regulatory Associate 
• Century College Library, White Bear Lake, MN – Library Technician 

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 
• Demonstrated knowledge, experience, and expertise with community college libraries, e-

resources, cataloging, and library acquisitions processes.
• Technical services experience; familiarity with IVCC and consortiums (CARLI, NILRC).
• Problem-solver with strong customer service experience.

Recommended Salary:  $22.70/hour Effective Date:  02/24/2025 

Mary Beth Herron 
Director of Human Resources 

Information Item 23.11

118



NAME POSITION DEPARTMENT / DIVISION
STATUS (PT)Part-time; 

(FT)Full-time
Date HR Received Notice 
/ Letter on File (Y) / (N) Effective Reason

Carranco, Theresa Administrative Assistant I Learning Resources PT 08/08/2024 (N) 8/8/2024 Temporary 
position ended

Garcia, David Instructor HFS PT 12/16/2024 (N) Last Day 
Worked 

10/21/2023

Has not worked 
in the last 12 
months

ITEM FOR INFORMATION
SEPARATIONS FROM EMPLOYMENT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES - FEBRUARY 19, 2025

Information Item 23.12

119



  Approved by the Board (01-18-2024) 

 

 
 
 

College Core Values 
Achieving Excellence through our Core Values (acronym is I-CARE) 

Integrity 
Compassion 
Accountability 
Respect 
Equity 

 
 
 
 

Vision Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College will foster personal and professional 
growth and well-being for our students and community through growing 

programs, updated facilities, and educational innovation. 
 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities for 

students and our community by providing access to affordable, 
high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 

 
 


	Board Packet Cover (with new branding)
	815 North Orlando Smith Road
	A G E N D A
	NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding


	Board Packet Inside Cover August 2024
	Board Agenda - February 19, 2025
	ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	A G E N D A


	Action Item - Tenure J Hubbell
	Tenure Recommendation -- J Hubbell Feb 25
	J. Hubbell - Tenure Recommendation
	Action Item - Tenure S Legrenzi
	Tenure Recommendation -- S Legrenzi Feb 25
	S. Legrenzi - Tenure Recommendation
	Action Item - Tenure C Parks
	Tenure Recommendation -- C Parks Feb 25
	C. Parks - Tenure Recommendation
	Action Item - Tenure S Slaight Brown
	Tenure Recommendation -- S Slaight Feb 25
	S. Slaight-Brown - Tenure Recommendation
	Action Item - Tenure J Timmers
	Tenure Recommendation -- J Timmers Feb 25
	J. Timmers - Tenure Recommendation
	Board Minutes - January 15, 2025
	Dr. Morris stated the Board Planning Committee will meet at 6:30 p.m. this evening.
	ADJOURNMENT
	Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 5:52 p.m.
	____________________________    _____________________________ Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary

	Board Planning Committee Minutes - 01-15-25
	treasurers report cover-NEW branding
	Financial Pages - scanned (FOR WEB & BOT)
	Action Item - Resolution Designating Fiscal Year
	Resolution Designating Fiscal Year 2026
	FY2026 Budget Calendar
	BUDGET CALENDAR ( FY2026

	Tuition Increase Adjustment FY2026
	Course Fee rationale to BOT FY26
	IVCCScan_20250210_141749
	Board Policy Action Resolution Agreement
	AAR Agency Relationship Certificate
	CDB Trust Account Action Item 810-046-021
	810-046-021 Illinois Valley Community College Trust Agreement
	Purchase Request - TDT Simulation Equipment 2025
	Sole Source letter for Michelle Carboni Illinois Valley CC SCAN_20250124_172320
	BOT - 2-5-2025 IT Equipment Purchase
	Computer purchase memo Kathy Ross 2.3.25
	MEMORANDUM

	BRPNS007300627V1_2025-02-05 (1)
	Quote_Q5196254_1738766799228
	Board Policy Action Item Emeritus Status Myers
	Resolution Faculty Emeritus Myers
	Board Policy Action Item Emeritus Status Weeg
	Resolution Faculty Emeritus Weeg
	Board Policy Action Item Emeritus Status Montgomery
	Resolution Adjunct Faculty Emeritus Montgomery
	Board Policy Action Item Emeritus Status Staff Emeritus Hayden
	Resolution Staff Emeritus Hayden
	Board Policy Action Item Emeritus Status Administrator Emeritus Borio
	Resolution Admin Emeritus Borio
	Board Procedure Action Item 01.15.00
	01.15.00 Board Travel Conference etc DRAFT 02.05.2024
	Action Item - Keturah Haferkamp Faculty Appointment 2025-08)
	Haferkamp_Keturah Faculty Appointment Form (2025-08-14)
	24FA grad memo for board - 012825
	ICCTA Letter of Support Goetz
	ICCTA Letter of Support Zukowski IVCC
	ICCTA Letter of Support Garretson
	ICCTA Letter of Support Castillo
	PAFR Award FY2023
	Illinois Valley Community College-Quality Initiative Report Review Panel Form
	I. Quality Initiative Review
	II. Recommendation
	III. Rationale (required)

	Version for Bd Book - 2025 1.16 MA IL Valley CC C lc
	Student Organization Budget
	Huey_Lydia (2025.02.18 Student Services Info Specialist)
	Pleiss_Laura  (2025.02.24 Library Technical Services Specialist)
	Email Version - 2025-02 Employee Separations Report
	Sheet1

	Board Packet Inside Back Cover - Vision, Mission, Goals Revised 01-19-2024



